
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Winnebago County Courthouse 
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room, 8th Floor  
 

Thursday, August 26, 2021 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ......................................... Board Member Tim Nabors 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – None  
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 
E. Proclamation – “International Overdose Awareness Day” Presented to Alysia Maggio, 

Drug Overdose Prevention Program (DOPP) Training Specialist 
 

6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of July 22, 2021 minutes  
B. Layover of August 12, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report  

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. River Bluff Advisory Board to be Laid Over 30 Days    

1. Jaime Salgado     
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

2. Resolution Approving the Mallinckrodt plc Bankruptcy Plan (Opioid Litigation) 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-06-21 A map amendment to rezone +/- 3.54 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District and RE, Rural Estate District (a sub-district of the RA District) to the RR, Rural 
Residential District (a sub-district of the RA District) for the properties that are 
commonly known as 8396 Elevator Road, Roscoe, IL 61073 and 11561 Patty Lin Court, 
Roscoe, IL 61073 in Roscoe Township, District 4 to be laid over. 

2. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report   
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (21-024) Resolution Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement between 

Winnebago County and the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority for the Operation and 
Maintenance of Emergency Vehicle Pre-emption Equipment at the I-90 Exit Ramp at 
East Riverside Boulevard 
WC Cost:  $00.00      C.B. District:  7 & 8 

3. (21-025) Resolution Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement between 
Winnebago County and Rockford Township for Phase 1 and II Design Engineering 
Services for the Widening and Repair of Guilford Road Culvert over Keith Creek (Section 
21-07000-00-BR) 
WC Cost:  $00.00      C.B. District:  16 

4. (21-026) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Local Public Agency Engineering 
Services Agreement with Willett Hofmann & Associates Inc. for Phase I and II Design 
Services for the Widening and Repair of Guilford Road Culvert over Keith Creek  
(Section 21-07000-00-BR) 
WC Cost:  $00.00      C.B. District:  16 

5. (21-027) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for Latham Road Widening from 
Meridian Road to Owen Center Road (Section 21-00683-00-PW) 
Cost:  $504,784.75     C.B. District:  1 

6. (21-028) An Ordinance Establishing a Speed Zone on Baxter Road from IL-39/US-51 
Eastside Ramp to S. Mulford Road 
Cost:  $ N/A      C.B. District:  9 

7. (21-029) Resolution Authorizing the Supplemental Appropriation of MFT Funds for the 
Maintenance of County Highways (Section 21-00000-00-GM) 
Cost:  $ 220,000      C.B. District:  County Wide 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report      

 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Finance Committee 
A. Ordinance Increasing the Fee for Duplicate Copies of Tax Bills Pursuant to the Property Tax 

Code, 35ILCS 200/20-12 Laid Over from August 12, 2021 Meeting 
Operations and Administrative Committee 
A. Resolution Adopting Criteria for the Operation of the County’s Delinquent Tax Program 

Laid Over from July 8 and 22 and August 12, 2021 Meetings  
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)  

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, September 9, 2021    



 

  

Awards, 
Presentations,  

Public Hearings,  
Public Participation & 
Awards Presentation 

 
 





 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 





















 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  August 26, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Approving the Mallinckrodt plc Bankruptcy Plan (Opioid 

Litigation) 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date:    August 26, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A               Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A                        Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: Approval of the Mallinckrodt plc Bankruptcy Plan (Opioid Litigation) 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Legal Review:  Legal review conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office  
 
Follow-Up: The SAO will submit the required voting instructions to the National Consortium by 
the deadline of September 1, 2021. 
 
 
 



  County Board Meeting: August 26, 2021 
  
  

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 
 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MALLINCKRODT PLC BANKRUPTCY PLAN 

(OPIOID LITIGATION) 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Winnebago County, Illinois is one of many governmental agencies 
represented by the National Prescription Opioids Litigation Consortium (National Consortium), 
who have filed proofs of claims in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Plan of Reorganization in 
connection with In Re Mallinckrodt plc and its affiliates; and  
 
 WHEREAS, all creditors are eligible to vote on approval of Mallinckrodt’s proposed 
bankruptcy plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon review of the plan and recommendation of the National Consortium 
and the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee (PEC), the Finance Committee recommends approval of 
the plan, which it believes, is a fair and equitable resolution of opioid-related claims against 
Mallinckrodt.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that Winnebago County, Illinois is hereby authorized to submit a vote of 
approval of the Mallinckrodt plc Bankruptcy Plan. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

  
 
 
 



AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 August 26, 2021  
 
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

     PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:   

1. Z-06-21 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE +/- 3.54 ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT AND RE, RURAL ESTATE DISTRICT (A SUB-
DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) TO THE RR, RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A 
SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) requested by MRT@CDS, LLC, Property Owner, 
represented by James A. Rodriquez, Attorney, for the properties that are commonly known as 
8396 Elevator Road, Roscoe, IL 61073 and 11561 Patty Lin Court, Roscoe, IL 61073 in Roscoe 
Township. 
PINS: 04-25-376-006 and 04-25-376-012 C.B. District:     4  
Lesa Rating: Low   Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map:   YES 
ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVAL (7-0)           
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

2.   COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 8, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the    
     County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting        
     is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, September 22, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. in Room 303 of     
    the County Administration Building.   

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



































































































































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@wincoil.us      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  August 5th, 2021 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance increasing the fee for duplicate copies of tax bills 

pursuant to the property tax code, 35ILCS 200/20-12  
 
County Code:       Chapter 2, Article I, Section 2-13 
   
Board Meeting Date:    August 12th, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?          N/A            Appropriation Amount:        N/A   

If not, explain funding source:          N/A 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:           N/A   Budget Impact:          N/A 
 
 

Background Information: The County Treasurer is recommending increasing the fee for 
duplicate copies of tax bills as provided under the Tax Code from 
$1.00 to $3.00 in order to cover costs associated with re-
production of the tax bills.  

 
Recommendation:  Staff concurs   
 
Contract/Agreement:  N/A  
 
Legal Review:     The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed and prepared the  
    ordinance 
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

County Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ___ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  

 
SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 

 
ORDINANCE INCREASING THE FEE FOR DUPLICATE COPIES OF TAX BILLS  

PURSUANT TO THE PROPERTY TAX CODE, 35 ILCS 200/20-12 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
adopt a new ordinance related to the fee for duplicate copies of tax bills under the Property 
Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/20-12 (“Tax Code”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Tax Code provides as follows: “The collector, upon approval by 

the county board, shall assess a fee of up to $5 for each duplicate tax bill provided to any 
mortgage lender as defined in Section 1-90 who is not the property owner of record. All 
amounts collected under this Section shall be deposited into the Tax Sale Automation Fund 
established in Section 21-245 of this Code”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Treasurer is recommending increasing the fee for 

duplicate copies of tax bills as provided under the Tax Code from $1.00 to $3.00 in order 
to cover more of the costs associated with re-production of the tax bills.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article I, Section 2-13 of the Winnebago County Code 
of Ordinances shall read as follows: 

 
 The county treasurer is hereby authorized to assess a fee of $3.00 for each 
duplicate tax bill provided to any mortgage lender as defined in section 1-90 of the 
Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/1-90), who is not the property owner of record. All 
amounts collected under this section shall be deposited into the Tax Sale Automation 
Fund established in section 21-245 of the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/21-245).  
 
State law reference- Authorized, 35 ILCS 200/20-12. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon signing. 

 



2 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 
a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator and the 
County Treasurer. 

   
Respectfully submitted, 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 



Sponsored by:  Paul Arena   County Board Meeting: August 12, 2021 
  
  

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING CRITERIA FOR THE OPERATION OF THE COUNTY’S 

DELINQUENT TAX PROGRAM 
 

 
WHEREAS, on October 24, 2019, the Winnebago County Board adopted Resolution 

2019 CR 127, authorizing the execution of a contract between the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
(County) and Region 1 Planning Council (R1PC) for R1PC to act as the County’s Agent in the 
operation of a Delinquent Tax Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the contract, R1PC is responsible for marketing and selling the 

property to the highest, responsible buyer; and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the current operations of the delinquent tax program, the 

Operations and Administrative Committee finds it is in the best interests of the citizens and 
taxing bodies in Winnebago County, Illinois to create additional criteria when evaluating 
submitted bids on properties under the program; and  

 
WHEREAS, the additional criteria will make prospective buyers ineligible for bidding 

on properties under the program if they are tax delinquent on other properties they own within 
Winnebago County, Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, this criteria for the Delinquent Tax Program would further support the two 

specific goals of the County and taxing districts within Winnebago County, Illinois, which are as 
follows: 

 
1. To recover delinquent real estate taxes for the benefit of all taxing districts having 

an interest in the particular parcel of real estate, and, 
 

2. In the case of property to which the County of Winnebago, as Trustee, ultimately 
takes a tax deed pursuant to the Property Tax Code, it will aid in the expeditious 
transfer of ownership and the return of that property to a responsible property 
owner (emphasis added).  

 
 



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County Board hereby adopts the criteria for the operation 
of the County’s Delinquent Tax Program, in substantially the same form as set forth herein. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the County Administrator, the County 
Treasurer, and Eric Setter, Land Bank Coordinator, 127 N. Wyman Street, Suite 100, Rockford, 
Illinois 61101,  

 
Respectfully submitted, 

        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman           John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby               Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________           ____________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
______________________________      _____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd          Dorothy Redd 
 
__________________________________        _____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
 

 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  

of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 



 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: August 26, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2 and Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2 – Proposed 

Alternative to the Requirements of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers 
Boiler & Pressure Vessel Code (EPIDS L-2020-LLR-0099 and L-2020-LLR-0100) 

 
b. Exelon Generation Company, LLC-Acceptance of License Amendment Request to 

Adopt TSTF-554 (EPIDL-2021-LLA-0121) 
 

c. Byron Station – Integrated Inspection Report 05000454/2021002; 
05000455/2021002; and 2021001. 

 

d. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 151 / Tuesday, August 10, 2021 / Notices 
 

e. Withdrawl of Non-Cited Violations 05000454/2011004-02; 05000455/2011004-
02; 05000456/2011004-06; 05000457/2011004-06 

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 
County Treasurer the Investment Report as of August, 2021. 

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

3. County Clerk Gummow received the Monthly Report for July, 2021 from the 
Winnebago County Recorder’s Office.  

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, Public Participation & Awards Presentation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Approving the Mallinckrodt plc Bankruptcy Plan (Opioid Litigation)
	Zoning Committee
	Public Works Committee
	(21-024) Resolution 
	(21-025) Resolution
	(21-026) Resolution
	(21-027) Resolution
	(21-028) Ordinance
	(21-029) Resolution
	Unfinished Business
	Ordinance Increasing Fee for Duplicate Copies of Tax Bills 
	Resolution Adopting Criteria for Operation of County's Delinquent Tax Program
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



